



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
One Team. One Goal. Your Health.

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

BYLAWS



ADOPTED BY THE
NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

REVISED AND ADOPTED IN CONFORMANCE WITH DIVISION 23, SECTION 32000 ET SEQ.
OF THE CALIFORNIA HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE ON FEBRUARY 21, 2024

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE I	NAME, AUTHORITY AND OFFICES	4
Section 1.	NAME.....	4
Section 2.	AUTHORITY	4
Section 3.	OFFICES.....	4
Section 4.	TITLE OF PROPERTY	4
ARTICLE II	PURPOSES AND SCOPE	5
Section 1.	PURPOSES.....	5
Section 2.	SCOPE OF BYLAWS	5
Section 3.	TAX EXEMPT STATUS	5
Section 4.	DISPOSITION OF SURPLUS.....	6
Section 5.	INDEMNIFICATION	6
Section 6.	FISCAL YEAR	6
ARTICLE III	BOARD OF DIRECTORS	7
Section 1.	ELECTION	7
Section 2.	POWERS	7
Section 3.	COMPENSATION	8
Section 4.	VACANCIES.....	8
ARTICLE IV	MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS.....	9
Section 1.	REGULAR MEETINGS.....	9
Section 2.	SPECIAL MEETINGS	9
Section 3.	QUORUM.....	9
Section 4.	ADJOURNMENT.....	9
Section 5.	PUBLIC MEETINGS	9
Section 6.	MINUTES.....	10
Section 7.	SCOPE OF MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS	10
ARTICLE V	OFFICERS AND THEIR DUTIES.....	11
Section 1.	OFFICERS.....	11
Section 2.	ELECTION OF OFFICERS.....	11
Section 3.	DUTIES	11
ARTICLE VI	COMMITTEES.....	13
Section 1.	COMMITTEES.....	13
Section 2.	STANDING COMMITTEES	13
Section 3.	AD HOC COMMITTEES	14
ARTICLE VII	CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER.....	15
Section 1	GENERAL PROVISIONS.....	15
Section 2.	QUALIFICATIONS, DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES	15
ARTICLE VIII	MEDICAL ADMINISTRATION IN THE HOSPITAL	16
Section 1.	ESTABLISHMENT OF A MEDICAL STAFF.....	16
Section 2.	BYLAWS, RULES AND REGULATIONS.....	16
Section 3.	BOARD ACTION ON MEMBERSHIP AND CLINICAL PRIVILEGES.....	16

Section 4. ACCOUNTABILITY TO THE BOARD18
Section 5. DOCUMENTATION.....18
Section 6. COMPENSATED MEDICAL DIRECTOR POSITIONS.....18
ARTICLE IX AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS.....19

ARTICLE I NAME, AUTHORITY AND OFFICES

Section 1. NAME

The name of this non-profit health care district organization shall be the Northern Inyo Healthcare District, hereinafter "the District".

Section 2. AUTHORITY

- a) This District, having been established January 11, 1946, by vote of the residents of the District under the provisions of Division 23, Section 32000 et seq, of the Health and Safety Code of the State of California, otherwise known and referred to herein as "The Local Health Care District Law," and ever since said time having been operated thereunder, these bylaws are adopted in conformance therewith, and subject to the provisions thereof.
- b) In the event of any conflict between these bylaws and "The Local Health Care District Law," the latter shall prevail. To the extent they are not in conflict with these bylaws, the proceedings of the District Board shall be guided by the most recent edition of Robert's Rules of Order.

Section 3. OFFICES

The principal office for the transaction of business of the District is hereby fixed within the boundaries of the District as determined by the Board of Directors.

Section 4. TITLE OF PROPERTY

The title to all property of the District shall be vested in the District, and the signature of the Chair and/or Secretary, or any officer designated by the Directors, as authorized at any meeting of the Directors, shall constitute the proper authority for the purchase or sale of property, or for the investment or other disposal of funds which are subject to the control of the District.

ARTICLE II PURPOSES AND SCOPE

Section 1. PURPOSES

The purposes of the Northern Inyo Healthcare District shall include, but not be limited to the following:

- a) Within available resources, to provide facilities and health services for quality acute and continued care of the injured and ill, inducing health maintenance and education, regardless of sex, race, creed, cultural or national origin.
- b) To coordinate, wherever possible and feasible, the activities of the District with health agencies and other health facilities providing specialized as well as comprehensive care.
- c) To conduct educational and research activities essential to the attainment of its purposes.
- d) To do any and all other acts necessary to carry out the provisions of the Health Care District Act.

Section 2. SCOPE OF BYLAWS

- a) These bylaws shall govern the Northern Inyo Healthcare District, its Board of Directors and its relationship to affiliated or subordinate organizations. The primary purpose of these bylaws is to provide rules for the self-governance of the District and the Board of Directors, to provide a structure for the Board of Directors to fulfill its functions and responsibilities with respect to an organized self-governing Medical Staff, and to provide a structure for Administration of the licensed healthcare inpatient and outpatient facilities operated by the District (specifically Northern Inyo Hospital, 1206 D and 1206 B clinics).
- b) The Board of Directors may delegate certain powers to the Authority of the Board's committees, the Medical Staff, and to other affiliated and subordinate organizations and groups governed by the District, such powers to be exercised in accordance with the respective bylaws or guidelines of such groups. All powers and functions not expressly delegated to such affiliated or subordinate organizations or groups are to be considered residual powers vested in the Board of Directors of this District.
- c) The Bylaws, Rules and Regulations of the Medical Staff and other affiliated and subordinate organizations and groups governed by the District, and any amendments to such bylaws, shall not be effective until the same are approved by the Board of Directors of the Northern Inyo Healthcare District. The provisions of these District bylaws shall be construed to be consistent with the Medical Staff's bylaws. Except that these Bylaws shall not conflict with the bylaws of the Medical Staff as approved by the Board of Directors, the Board of Directors may review these Bylaws and revise them as it deems appropriate.

Section 3. TAX EXEMPT STATUS

There shall be no contemplation of profit or pecuniary gain, and no distribution of profits to any individual, under any guise whatsoever; nor shall there be any distribution of assets or surpluses to any individual on the dissolution of this District.

Section 4. DISPOSITION OF SURPLUS

Should the operation of the District result in a surplus of revenue over expenses during any particular period, such surplus may be used and dealt with by the Directors for charitable District purposes or for improvements hospital's facilities for the care of the sick, injured, or disabled, or for other purposes not inconsistent with the Local Health Care District Act, or these bylaws. The Board of Directors may authorize the disposition of any surplus property of the District by any method determined appropriate by the Board.

Section 5. INDEMNIFICATION

- a) Any person made or threatened to be made a party to any action or proceeding, whether civil or criminal, administrative or investigative, by reason of the fact that he/she, his/her estate, or his/her personal representative is or was a Director, officer or employee of the District, or an individual (including a medical staff appointee) acting as an agent of the District, or serves or served any other corporation or other entity or organization in any capacity at the request of the District while acting as a Director, officer, employee or agent of the District shall be and hereby is indemnified by the District, as provided in Sections 825 *et.seq.* of the California Government Code.
- b) Indemnification shall be against all judgments, fines, amounts paid in settlement and reasonable expenses, including attorney's fees actually and necessarily incurred, as a result of any such action or proceeding, or any appeal therein, to the fullest extent permitted and in the manner prescribed by the laws of the State of California, as they may be amended from time to time, or such other law or laws as may be applicable to the extent such other law or laws is not inconsistent with the law of California, including Sections 825 *et.seq.* of the California Government Code.
- c) Nothing contained herein shall be construed as providing indemnification to any person in any malpractice action or proceeding arising out of or in any way connected with such person's practice of his or her profession.

Section 6. FISCAL YEAR

The fiscal year of the District shall commence on the first day of July and each year shall end on the last day of June of each year.

ARTICLE III BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1. ELECTION

The Board of Directors shall be elected as provided in "The Local Healthcare District Law," which shall also govern eligibility for election to the Board of Directors.

Section 2. POWERS

The Board of Directors shall have and exercise all the powers of a Healthcare District as set forth in the Healthcare District Act. Specifically, the Board of Directors shall be empowered as follows:

- a) To control and be responsible for the overall governance of the District, including the provision of management and planning.
- b) To make and enforce all rules and regulations necessary for the administration, government, protection and maintenance of hospitals and other facilities under District jurisdiction and to ensure compliance with all applicable laws.
- c) To appoint a Chief Executive Officer and to define the powers and duties of such appointee, and to delegate to such person overall responsibility for operations of the District, the Hospital, and affiliated entities as specified herein and consistent with Board of Directors' Policies. The Board shall also retain legal counsel and independent auditors as needed for District and Hospital operations.
- d) To authorize the formation of other affiliated or subordinate organizations which they may deem necessary to carry out the purposes of the District.
- e) To periodically review and develop a strategic plan for the District and the Hospital.
- f) To determine policies and approve procedures for the overall operation and affairs of this District and its facilities according to the best interests of the public health and to assure the maintenance of quality patient care.
- g) To enter into Joint Powers Agreements with other public entities, and to carry out the District's responsibilities in regard to such Joint Powers Authority as prescribed by law.
- h) To evaluate the performance of the Hospital in relation to its vision, mission and goals.
- i) To provide for coordination and integration among the Hospital's leaders to establish policy, maintain quality care and patient safety, and provide for necessary resources.
- j) To be ultimately accountable for the safety and quality of care, treatment and services.
- k) All powers of the Board of Directors, which are not restricted by statute, may be delegated by an employment agreement, policies, and by direction of the Board to the Chief Executive Officer or to others employed by or with responsibilities to the District, to be exercised in accordance with that delegation.
- l) In the event of a vacancy in any Board office established by Article V of these Bylaws (Chair,

Vice Chair, etc.), the Board of Directors shall select someone to fill such vacancy and to serve until the next regular election of officers, unless such person earlier resigns or is removed in accordance with said Article.

- m) To do any and all other act and things necessary to carry out the provisions of these bylaws or of the provisions of the Local Healthcare District Law.

Section 3. COMPENSATION

The Board of Directors shall serve without compensation except that the Board of Directors, by a majority vote of the members of the Board, may authorize payment not to exceed one hundred dollars (\$100) per meeting, or for each committee meeting or other meeting authorized by Board or Chair of the Board, and not to exceed five (5) meetings a month as compensation to each member of the Board of Directors, in accordance with Section 32103 of the California Health and Safety Code, as amended.

Each member of the Board of Directors shall be allowed his/her necessary traveling and incidental expenses incurred in the performance of official business of the District pursuant to the Board's policy.

A budget for the Board of Directors educational expenses is developed each year. At least annually, the entire Board will review their travel and incidental expenses.

Section 4. VACANCIES

Any vacancy upon the Board of Directors shall be filled by the methods prescribed in Section 1780 of the Government Code.

ARTICLE IV MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS

Section 1. REGULAR MEETINGS

The regular meetings of the Board of Directors of the Northern Inyo Healthcare District shall be held monthly, or as periodically determined by the Board, on such day and at such time as the Board of Directors shall from time-to-time establish by resolution and/or motion.

Section 2. SPECIAL MEETINGS

Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by the Chair or three (3) Directors, and notice of the holding thereof shall be received by each member of the Board of Directors at least twenty-four hours (24) before said meeting.

Section 3. QUORUM

A majority of the members of the Board of Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and motions and resolutions shall be passed if affirmatively voted upon by a majority of those voting at the time the vote is taken. If a member has a conflict of interest and may not vote they may not be counted towards a quorum.

Section 4. ADJOURNMENT

A quorum of the Board of Directors may adjourn any Directors' meeting to meet again at a stated day and hour; provided, however, that in the absence of a quorum, a majority of the Directors present at any Directors' meeting, either regular or special, may adjourn until the time fixed for the next regular meeting of the Board of Directors. An adjourned meeting can consider only the business of the meeting which was adjourned. An adjourned meeting must be completed prior to the convening of a new meeting.

Section 5. PUBLIC MEETINGS

All meetings of the Board of Directors whether regular, special or adjourned, shall be open to the public in accordance with Government Code Sections 54950 through 54961, commonly known as the Ralph M. Brown Act provided, however, that the foregoing shall not be construed to prevent the Board of Directors from holding executive sessions to consider the appointment, employment, promotion, demotion or dismissal of an employee or public officer, as the term is defined by law, or to hear complaints or charges brought against such officer or employee, to discuss labor negotiations, or to consult with legal counsel concerning litigation to which the District is a party, and prospective and probably litigation, as provided in Sections 54956.7 through 54957 of the Government Code. In addition, closed sessions may be held to discuss trade secrets as defined in Government Code Section 54956.7, and provided in Section 32106 of the Health and Safety Code. To the extent not in violation with the Ralph M. Brown Act or the California Public Records Act, and California Health and Safety Code Section 32155, any information and reports protected from discovery by California Evidence Code Section 1157 that are provided to the Board of Directors by the Medical Staff shall be presented and discussed in closed sessions, maintained as confidential and not released except as required by applicable laws.

Section 6. MINUTES

A book of minutes of all public meetings of the Board of Directors shall be kept at the principal office of the District and shall be open for public inspection upon request.

Section 7. SCOPE OF MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS

The decisions of the Board establishing general rules or procedures of the District and/or procedures affecting the Directors shall be by motion or resolution. All motions or resolutions become effective at the time voted upon affirmatively by a majority of the Directors voting at the time the vote is taken.

ARTICLE V OFFICERS AND THEIR DUTIES

Section 1. OFFICERS

The officers of the Board of Directors of the Northern Inyo Healthcare District shall be a Chair, Vice Chair and a Secretary, a Treasurer, and “Member at Large”.

Section 2. ELECTION OF OFFICERS

- a) The slate of proposed officers for the Board of Directors shall rotate each year as follows:

Member at Large becomes the Treasurer
 Treasurer becomes Secretary
 Secretary becomes Vice Chair
 Vice Chair becomes Chair
 Chair becomes Member at Large

At the December meeting of every calendar year, the Board of Directors shall vote whether to accept the proposed slate of officers, or whether to propose an alternative slate. Each officer shall hold the office for one year, or until a successor shall be elected and qualified, or until the officer is otherwise disqualified to serve.

- b) If an officer of the Board, other than the Chair, is unable to act, the Board may appoint some other member of the Board of Directors to do so, and such person shall be vested temporarily with all the functions and duties of the office.
- c) Any officer on the Board of Directors may resign at any time or be removed as a Board officer by the majority vote of the other Directors then in office at any regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors. In the event of a resignation or removal of an officer, the Board of Directors shall elect a successor to serve for the balance of that officer's unexpired term.

Section 3. DUTIES

- a) Chair: The Board of Directors shall elect one of their members to act as Chair. If at any time the Chair shall be unable to act, the Vice Chair shall assume office and perform the duties of the office. If the Vice Chair shall also be unable to act, then the Secretary/Treasurer shall assume the office and shall immediately conduct a Board election to appoint a Chair, and such person shall be vested temporarily with all the functions and duties of the Chair.

The Chair or member of the Board of Directors acting as such, as above provided:

- (1) Shall preside over all meetings of the Board of Directors, and shall review all requested agenda items submitted to the Chair and the Chair & Chief Executive Officer pursuant to the Board's written policies;
- (2) Shall sign as Chair on behalf of the District all instruments in writing that the Chair has been specifically authorized by the Board to sign;
- (3) Shall act as the main liaison between the Board and management for communications and

oversight purposes. It is expected that the Chair will discuss District business with the Chief Executive Officer and Vice Chair on a regular Basis;

- (4) Shall appoint or remove members of committees subject to approval by the Board of Directors.
 - (5) Shall have, subject to the advice and control of the Board of Directors, general responsibility for the affairs of the District and generally shall discharge all other duties which shall be required of the Chair by the Bylaws of the District.
- b) Vice Chair: The Vice Chair shall, in the event of death, absence, or other inability of the Chair, exercise all the powers and perform all the duties herein given to the Chair. It is expected that the Vice Chair will participate in regular discussions with the Chair and Chief Executive Officer regarding District business.
- c) Secretary:
- (1) The member of the Board who is elected to the position of Secretary shall act in this capacity for both the District and the Board of Directors;
 - (2) Shall be responsible for seeing that records of all actions, proceedings and minutes of meetings of the Board of Directors are properly kept and are maintained at the District offices;
 - (3) Shall serve, or cause to be served, all notices required either by law or these bylaws, and in the event of absence, inability, refusal or neglect to do so, such notices may be served by any person thereunto directed by the Chair of the Board of Directors of this District;
 - (4) Shall be responsible for seeing that the seal of this District is in safekeeping at the District and shall use it under the direction of the Board of Directors;
 - (5) Shall perform such other duties as pertains to the office and as are prescribed by the Board of Directors. The Secretary may delegate his or her duties to appropriate management personnel.
- d) Member at Large: The Member at Large shall have all the powers and duties of the Secretary in the absence of the Secretary, and shall perform such other duties as may from time to time be prescribed by the Board of Directors.
- e) Treasurer:
- (1) Shall have the responsibility for the safekeeping and disbursement of funds in the treasury of the District in accordance with the provisions of the "Local Healthcare District Law" and in accordance with resolutions, procedures and directions as the Board of Directors may adopt;
 - (2) Shall receive monthly reports from management with respect to the financial condition of the District and shall present such reports to the Board of Directors as directed by the

Board of Directors;

- (3) Shall perform such other duties as they pertain to this office and as prescribed by the Board of Directors. The Treasurer may delegate his or her duties to appropriate management personnel.

ARTICLE VI COMMITTEES

Section 1. COMMITTEES

- a) The Board of Directors may sit as a Committee of the Whole on any and all matters, or may create such Standing Committees, ad hoc Committees, or task force Committees as are deemed appropriate.
- b) The duties of these committees shall be to develop and make policy recommendations to the Board and to perform such other functions as shall be stated in these bylaws or in the resolution or motion creating the committee. Each Standing Committee will include two Board members, one of whom shall act as Chair of the Standing Committee. The Chair and Board members of each Standing Committee shall be appointed by the Chair of the Board and approved by the Board at the earliest possible time at the beginning of each calendar year and shall serve for one year, or until a successor has been appointed and approved. Other members of each standing committee are automatically members with one year terms, or until a successor has been appointed and approved. The two Board members shall be the only voting members of each Standing Committee, unless otherwise provided for in these Bylaws.
- c) Special or ad hoc committees may be appointed by the Chair with the approval of the Board of Directors for such specific tasks as circumstances warrant. Special committees may consist only of Board members, or they may include individuals not on the Board. Voting rights on special committees shall be specified by the Board of Directors at the time the committee is created. No committee so appointed shall have any power or authority to commit the Board of Directors or the District in any manner; however, the Board may direct the particular committee to act for and on its behalf, by special vote.
- d) All committees shall keep minutes of each meeting and shall maintain their minutes at the District offices and shall submit reports to the Board as requested.
- e) Aside from committees upon which the Chair is appointed as a voting member, the Chair of the Board shall be an ex officio member of each committee, without being a voting member. The Chair shall be notified of all committee meetings.

Section 2. STANDING COMMITTEES

Governance Committee:

- a) Members of this standing committee shall include two representatives from the Board of Directors and the Chief Executive Officer. The Compliance Officer and others may attend as requested. The two members of the Board of Directors shall be the only members of the Committee with voting privileges.

- b) The function of this Committee is to recommend amendments or changes to the District bylaws and Board policies. This Committee shall make recommendations to the Board of Directors for edits and updates to Board Bylaws, Board Policies and plan Board Self-Assessments, Board strategic meetings, format for Chief Executive Officer evaluation and other areas of governance.
- c) This committee shall meet no less than quarterly.

Compliance/Quality/Safety/Risk Committee:

- a) Members of this standing committee shall include a committee of the whole of the Board of Directors, the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Medical Officer, Chief of Staff, and others as requested. The Directors shall be the only members of the Committee with voting privileges.
- b) The function of the Compliance/Quality/Safety/Risk Committee (CQSRC) is to analyze data regarding compliance, safety and quality of care, treatment and services and establish priorities for performance improvement.
- c) The Compliance/Quality/Safety/Risk Committee (CQSRC) shall meet no less than quarterly.

Finance and Audit Committee:

- a) Members of this standing committee shall include a committee of the whole of the Board of Directors, Chief Financial Officer, the Chief Executive Officer and others as requested. The Directors shall be the only members of the Committee with voting privileges.
- b) The Finance Committee in consultation with the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer shall be responsible for reviewing and monitoring the annual budget and, as appropriate, its long-term capital expenditure plan. The Finance Committee shall make recommendations to the Board on retention of auditors and approve audits, and business plans pursuant to subsidiary organizations.
- c) The Finance and Audit Committee shall meet no less than quarterly.

Section 3. AD HOC COMMITTEES

From time to time, the Board may appoint an “ad hoc” committee for specialized issues and projects.

ARTICLE VII CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Section 1 GENERAL PROVISIONS

The Board of Directors shall have the authority to employ and discharge the Chief Executive Officer and shall specify the terms and conditions of the person's employment. The performance of the Chief Executive Officer will be evaluated on an annual basis by the Board of Directors based on performance criteria established from time to time by the Board of Directors.

The Chief Executive Officer shall be responsible for the overall management of the Hospital and District, and has the necessary and full authority to effect this responsibility subject to the Board's oversight, any policies and directives issued by the Board, and as called upon pursuant to the JPA Agreement. Chief Executive Officer is directly responsible to the Board of Directors and the Authority, for the management of the Hospital and all of its departments and activities.

Section 2. QUALIFICATIONS, DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Qualifications, specific duties and responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer shall be set forth in the appropriate section of the Policy Manual and any employment agreement with the Chief Executive Officer.

ARTICLE VIII MEDICAL ADMINISTRATION IN THE HOSPITAL

Section 1. ESTABLISHMENT OF A MEDICAL STAFF

There shall be a Medical Staff for the Hospital established in accordance with the requirements of the Local Healthcare District Law (H. & Safety Code 32000, *et.seq.*), whose membership shall be comprised of all physicians, dentists and podiatrists who are duly licensed and privileged to admit and care for patients in the Hospital. The Board of Directors shall appoint the Medical Staff, which shall be an integral part of the Hospital. The Medical Staff derives its authority from the Board of Directors and shall function in accordance with the Medical Staff Bylaws, Rules and Regulations and Policies that have been approved by the Medical Staff and by the Board.

The Medical Staff shall be represented before the Board of Directors by the Chief of Staff or his/her designee and shall be afforded full access to the Board through the Board's regular meetings and committees as described herein. The Medical Staff, through its officers, department chiefs, and committees, shall be responsible and accountable to the Board of Directors for the discharge of those duties and responsibilities set forth in the Medical Staff's Bylaws, Rules and Regulations, and Policies, and as delegated by the Board of Directors from time to time.

Section 2. BYLAWS, RULES AND REGULATIONS

The Medical Staff is responsible for the development, adoption, and periodic review of the Medical Staff Bylaws and Rules and Regulations, consistent with these District Bylaws, applicable laws, government regulation, and accreditation standards. The Medical Staff Bylaws, Rules and Regulations and all amendments thereto, shall become effective upon approval by the Medical Staff and the Board of Directors.

Section 3. BOARD ACTION ON MEMBERSHIP AND CLINICAL PRIVILEGES

- a) Medical Staff Responsibilities: The Medical Staff is responsible to the Board of Directors for the quality of care, treatment and services rendered to patients in the Hospital. The Board of Directors shall delegate to the Medical Staff the responsibility and authority to investigate and evaluate all matters relating to Medical Staff membership status, clinical privileges, and corrective action, except as provided in Section 3(d). The Medical Staff adopt and forward to the Board or committee of the Board specific written recommendations, with appropriate supporting documentation, that will allow the Board of Directors to take informed action. When the Board of Directors does not concur with a Medical Staff recommendation, the matter shall be processed in accordance with the Medical Staff Bylaws and applicable law before the Board renders a final decision. The Board of Directors shall act on recommendations of the Medical Staff within the period of time specified in the Medical Staff Bylaws or Rules and Regulations, or if no time is specified, then within a reasonable period of time. However, at all times the final authority for appointment to membership on the Medical Staff of the Hospital remains the sole responsibility and authority of the Board of Directors.
- (b) Criteria for Board Action: The process and criteria for acting on matters affecting Medical Staff membership status and clinical privileges shall be as specified in the Medical Staff Bylaws.

- (c) Terms and Conditions of Staff Membership and Clinical Privileges: The terms and conditions of membership status in the Medical Staff, and the scope and exercise of clinical privileges, shall be as specified in the Medical Staff bylaws unless otherwise specified in the notice of individual appointment following a determination in accordance with the Medical Staff Bylaws.
- (d) Initiation of Corrective Action and Suspension: Where in the best interests of patient safety, quality of care, or the Hospital staff, and after consultation with the Chief of Staff, the Board of Directors shall have the authority to take any action that it deems appropriate with respect to any individual applying for or appointed to the Medical Staff or who is seeking or exercising clinical privileges or the right to practice in the Hospital. Action taken by the Board of Directors in such matters shall follow the procedures for corrective action outlined in the Medical Staff Bylaws, Rules and Regulations. The Board shall notify the Executive Committee immediately of any such action.

Chief Executive Officer may summarily suspend or restrict clinical privileges of any Medical Staff member where failure to take action may result in imminent danger to the health of any individual and when no person authorized to take such action by the Medical Staff is available, provided that the Chief Executive Officer has made reasonable documented attempts to contact the person or persons so authorized. A suspension by the Chief Executive Officer that has not been ratified by the Medical Executive Committee within two working days, excluding weekends and holidays, shall terminate automatically.

- (e) Fair Hearing and Appellate Procedures: The Medical Staff Bylaws shall establish fair hearing and appellate review mechanisms in connection with Staff recommendations for the denial of Staff appointments, as well as denial of reappointments, or the curtailment suspension or revocation of privileges. The hearing and appellate procedures employed by the Board of Directors upon referral of such matters shall be consistent with the Local Healthcare District Law at Section 32150 *et. seq.* of the Health & Safety Code, and those specified in the Medical Staff Bylaws, Rules and Regulations to the extent not inconsistent therewith. Any doctor or other practitioner who feels aggrieved by any adverse recommendation or deprivation of Medical Staff status or clinical privileges shall be required, as a condition to exercising his or her right of appeal to the Board, to pursue his or her appeal through orderly channels of appeal and at the proper time and in the manner prescribed by the Bylaws and procedures of the Medical Staff of this hospital. When the Medical Staff has made its final ruling and decision concerning the appeal of any aggrieved doctor or practitioner in accordance with the Bylaws of the Medical Staff, and such doctor or practitioner then desires to appeal to the Board, he or she shall give notice in writing to the Hospital Administrator within ten (10) days next following the date of the entry of the final order of the Medical Staff. Said notices must state in substance the grievance made and complained of, and must be given in the time and manner herein specified, or the Board shall not take cognizance thereof except at its discretion. If said notice is so given within said time, then it shall be the duty of the Board to then consider such grievance in its entirety and render the decision of the Board in writing, and deliver a copy of its decision and findings to the aggrieved doctor or practitioner. Such decision shall be final.

The Medical Staff shall have the right to be heard, through its Chief of Staff or designee at meetings of the Board.

Section 4. ACCOUNTABILITY TO THE BOARD

The Medical Staff shall conduct and be accountable to the Board for conducting activities that contribute to the preservation and improvement of quality patient care and safety in the Hospital.

Section 5. DOCUMENTATION

The Board shall receive and act upon the findings and recommendations emanating from the activities required by Section 4. All such findings and recommendations shall be in writing and supported and accompanied by appropriate documentation upon which the Board can take appropriate action.

Section 6. COMPENSATED MEDICAL DIRECTOR POSITIONS

Compensated Medical Director positions shall be responsible to the Chief Executive Officer and the Medical Staff for documentation of activities related to their assignment. Compensated Medical Directors shall be approved by the Chief Executive Officer and for fit and compensation amount. Medical Staff may appoint Service Directors, the slate of Service Directors must be approved by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE IX AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS

These Bylaws may be amended by affirmative vote of a majority of the total number of members of the Board of Directors at any regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors, provided a full statement of such proposed amendment shall have been sent to each Board member not less than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the meeting.

Affirmative action may be taken to amend these Bylaws by unanimous vote of the entire Board membership at any regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors, in which event the provision for forty-eight (48) hours notice shall not apply.